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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of GMR Hospitality Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. GMR Hospitality Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards (‘'Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs
(financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon:

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor's report.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. -

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements:

5.

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management and Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to doso.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

8.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
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10.

11.

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise Pprofessional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(1)  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

(i) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(iif) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(if) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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12." We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

13. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the company has not paid any remuneration during the year.

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we

give in “Appendix - A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

15, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2024
from being appointed as directors in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
te report in “Appendix-B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
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adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i

ik

iv,

There are no pending litigations having impact on financial statements of the Company as
on March 31, 2024. '

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

a. The managemeﬁt has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any persons or entities, including foreign entities ('the intermediaries'), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries')
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

- The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ('the Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.
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v. During the year, the Company has not declared any dividend.

vi. Based on our examination, the Company, has used accounting software’s for maintaining
its books of accounit which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility except for
the billing software used by the Company against which the implication of audit trial is in
progress Additionally, the accounting software i.e. Navision software, certain master data
creation such as vendor creation, PO creation, and GL creation, does not have audit trail
feature enabled.

The audit trail facility has been operating throughout the year for all other relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
1,2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For K.S8. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 0031095

H\ Qe 2 Cb‘-_r
Sudarshana GuptaM S
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 223060
Date: 17 May, 2024 UDIN No: 24223060BKAJYM
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Appendix - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Appendix referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report that:

(i) Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

()

(b)

©)

(d)

(e)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ('PPE’).

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has the program of physical verification of PPE so to cover all the assets
once every three years and to deal with material discrepancies identified on such
verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, the Company has
physically verified certain property, plant and equipment during the year and is in the
process of tagging those assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification which have been dealt with in the books of account.

According to the information and explanétions given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company doesn’t own any immovable
properties in the name of the Company other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee,

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangibles
during the year.

Accordingly to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amenided in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

(b) As per the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not availed loan
towards working capital requirements in excess of five Crores on the basis of security of current
assets and movable assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the order is not
applicable.
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The Company has not made investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships,
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to other parties and Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has no loans, investments, guarantee and security which meets the requirements of section 185
and 186 of the Act and Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits and does not have any unclaimed deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

a} According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records as
produced and examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s
state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at March
31, 2024 for a period of more than six months form date they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise
duty, cess which have not.been deposited on account of dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

(a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to the financial institution, banks or any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by the way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though
idle /surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in
readily realisable liquid investments.

(d) During the year, the Company has not raised funds on short-term basis, accordingly,
reporting under clause 3 (ix)(d) is not applicable.

(¢) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.
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(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

(x) (a} According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company

(xi)

(xif)

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi}

has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and hence the reporting under clause 3 (x)(a) is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) is not applicable.

(2) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the period.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us, during the year, the
Company has not received any whistle blower complaints.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
nota Nidhi company, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the books of account. '

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business. '

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
‘Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.
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(b} In our opinion, the Company is not conducting any Non-Barking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

() The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by RBL Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi){c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) According to the information explanation provided to us, the group has two CIC as a part
of its group.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 327.74 Lakhs during the financial year
covered or and also incurred cash losses amounting Rs.107.03 Lakhs in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The provisions with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx} of the Order is not applicable for the year,

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of financial statements of
the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this
report,

For K.S. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 0031095

HS2 =

Sudarshana GuptaM S
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 223060 G
Date: 17 May, 2024 UDIN No: 24223060BKAJYM6607
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Appendix - B to the Independent Auditors” Report

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of M/s. GMR
'Hospitality Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
conttrols based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act).

Auditors’ Responsibility

. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that,

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. -

Opinion

In our opinion the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essenfial components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the ICAL

For K.S. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICA] Firm Re gistration No: 0031095

H.Ss s @

Sudarshana GuptaM S
Partner
Place: New Dethi Membership No. 223060
Date: 17 May, 2024 UDIN No: 24223060BK A]JYM6607
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GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN US$101 HR2022PLC105440)
Bnlance Sheet as at 31st March 2024
(Al amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, except For share data and if otherwise stated)

i AR As At]
ll’art}culm‘s Note Na. 31 March 10;; 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and eguipment 3 1,737.21 333.17
Capital work-in-progress 4 68,24 142.64
Intangible assets 3a 1325 6.98|
Financial assets 3 82228 10.00]
Deferred tax agsets (net) 6 161.62 288
Other non-curnent assets 7 69331 146.59
Encome lax assets (net) 6 3.41 118
Total nou-current assets 3,501.32 669,37
Curvent assets
Inventories & 4248 20.24
Financial assets
1. Frade receivables £l 293 4.47
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 10 2,193.494 4£47.87
i, Other fimancial assets . s 1068 23.21
Other gurrent assets 7 68.15 12,84
Total curcent assets 231768 508.63
Total nssets Sﬁl&ﬂﬂ i,l?’s.(!l_]lﬂ
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity .
Fquity share capital 11 3,510.00 210.00
Other equity (402.31) (85.72)
Total equity 3,107.69 724.28 |
[LAABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financizl liabilines
i. Borrowings iz 1,278.53 .
i. Qther financial Liabilities - 13 3224 -
Provisions 14 26.36 4.93
(Other non-current liabilities 15 - .
Total non-current babilities 1.337.13 4.93
Curreat linbilitics
Finansial liabilities
i, Borrowings 12 153.42 -
ii. Other financial liabilities 13 Tt7.63 171.08
iiz. Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 16 28.98 26.56
{b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smal 16 391.54 214.69
IProvisions 14 0.22 .12
Other current liabilities is 82.39 36.34
Total cerent Babilities 1,374.18 448,79
Fotal liahHities 271131 453.72
Total equity and Linbilities 5,819.00 1,178.00
LA
Summary of material aceounting policies 12&2b
The sccompayiitg notes are an integral part of the audited financial Statements,
This is the audited balance sheet referred to in cur report of even date.
As per our rgport of even date For and o hehalfl of the Board of Directors of
For K.5. Rao & Co. GMR Hospitality Limited
ICAl Firm Reglstration No. ; 0031098
Chartered Accountants
W= say
Sudershana Gupta M 8 Rajesfi Kumar Arora
Partner trecior
Membership no.: 223060 DIN: 03174536
Place: New Belhi Place: New Dethi
Date: 17th May 2024 Date: 17th May 2024
Sahil Mittal
CFO Company Secretary
PAN: BDIPMS56454 PAN: AVOPR7153C
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: 17th May 2024 Date: 17th Mny 2024




GMR Hospitality Limidted (CTN US5101 HR2022PLC 105 440)
Statement of Prafit and Loss for the yenr eded 31st March 2024,
(Al amounts s dn Ry, Lakds, except for shire datn aod if slerwise stated}

Burticul Note No. Far the yearended  For the perind from 25¢h July,
rticutars 31 March 2024 2022 to 31st Maxch 2023
Income
Revenue frem pperations 7 33 450,485
Oiler income 18 YT 12.94
Total ncome JiiS81 463,79
EXPENSES
Cost of malcrials consumed 19 705.78 134.41
Employse benefiis capenso 20 L,170,20 17533
Concession foos 21 739.74 i0).08
Othor cxponses 22 250,06 15997
Total expenscs Jéﬁs.‘!ﬂ 570.79
Earnings /(foss) before finance cost, tax, depreciation and amoriisution expenses (EBITDA)
anit exceptional items {214.97) (L07.00)
fFinance cosls 23 11632 0.03
Deprecialion and mnortisation exponse b2 11636 7.50
23268 - 183
Profitf{Loss} betore tax and exceptional ems {447.65) {114.53)|
Tix expense
Currenl tax
Deforred tax (13237 (28.81)
Tot tax (lﬁ.ﬂ) {28.81 }
(Loss) for the period r315.y_;) (85.72;

Other compeghensive income
Other compredensive inctme not to be reclassificd to profit or loss;

Re-measurement loss on defined benefi; plans (1.714) -
Income tax effect {0443 -
Other evaprebensive income for the period, net of tax {1.30) -
| Totnl camprehensive income for the period, net of tax ‘316.581 i85.72)

Earnings per cquily share [noptinal yaluc of Rs. 1 each
Diasic, compuled oa the basis of (foss) for the period altributable to cauily

1

holders of the Company i (1.963 (.78
Diluted, computed en the basis of {loss} for the period atwibutable to couily .

holders of the Company 2 (.96} (1.78)
iSumm&af ftLaterial u::couminag icics 1,2 & 2b

The accompaying noles arg an integral part of tho audited finmuwint Statcmenls,

This is the audited statement of profit and {oss reforced to in our report of even date.

As pex gur rejiort of even date For and on hehalf of the Board of Dircctors of

For K.5. Rao & Co. GMR Hospitality Limited

Firm Registation Numbcr ; 0031095

Charterzd Accountants

Rl 2 QU

Sudarshana Guptx M §
Partner

Merbeship no,; 223060
Place: New Delki

Date: 176 May 2024

Djwior

DIN: 93174536
Place: New Dedhi
Drate: 17th May 2024

«
Sahit Mittal Rio

CrO Company Sceretary
PAN: BDIPM36494A PAN: AYCPRTS3C
Pluce: New Delhi Place: New Dethi

Date: 17th May 2024 Date: 17¢th May 2024




GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN US5101 HR}022PLC105440)
Statement Cash Flows fox the year ended 3ist Marelr 2024,

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

For the period from 25th July

{in Rs, Lakhs)

2022 fo 3tst March 2023

{L.ass) before tax (447.65) {114.33)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cosh flows
Drepreciation and amoertisation expense ! 116,36 7.50
Interest costs 116.32 -
Intorest income on Security Deposit (3.74} -
Interest income from bank deposits {14.31} (12.00)
Fair Vakie gain on current investments realised (.63} -
Fair Valuze gain on current investmenis (25.71) -
Interest Expenses on Security Deposit 7.30 -
Operating (loss) before worldng capital changes (283,06) (119.03),
Movements in worldng capitat @
(Increase} in trade feceivables 0.49 (4.47)
(Increase) in inventories (22.24) (20.24)
increase in other financial assefs and other assets (1,138.32) {46.05)
Increase in trade pryables, other financial lizbilities and other Habilities 830,87 285,93
Movements in working capital {329.20) 21517
Cash in operations {581.22) 96.14
Direct rtes paid {net of sefunds) {2.23y (1.18)
Net cash from operating activities {A) {583.45) 94.96
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of propetty, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress and capital advances) (1,7360.88) (468.91))
Movement in bank deposits (with maturity more than three months) (1.38) -
Interest received 14.06 11.82
Net Gain on Sale of Investrent 27.34 -
Net cash Tromt investing activities (B} (1,696.85) {457.09)
C.  CASH¥LOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from term loans 1,431.95 -
Repayment of borcowings (including current maturities) “ -
Interest paid (55.44) -
Other finance costs (50.62) -
Intesim dividend paid on equity shares (ineluding tax on dividend) - -
Proceeds from issue of shares 2,700.00 §10.00
Net cash Now peacrated fram financing netivities {C) 4,025.89 810,00
Net increpse in ¢ash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,745.59 a47.87
Cagh and cash equivalents at beginniug of the period 447.88 -
Soshand cash equivalenis at end of the poriod 219344 447,88

Components of cash and cash cquivalenis

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the period from. 23th July
2022 to 3tst March 2023

Cash and tash equivnients ns a1 the end of the period

Cash on hand 18.85 3.00
Balance with banks: - -

~ Ort current accoums 475.61 44.87
- Daposit with ariginal maturity of less thg\_n 3 months 1,698.98 400.00
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

period 2,193.44 447.88

Suinmary of material acrounting policies 1.2&2b

This is the audited Statement of Cask Flows referred to in our report of even date.

As per our reporl of even date

For K.§. Bao & Co.

Firm Registration Number : 0031088
Chartered Accountants

GMR Hospitality Linited

Ha g2 @y

Sudavshana Gupta M 8
Partrer

Membership no.: 223060
Place: New Delhi

Diate: 17th May 2024

DIN:J 02350866
fiade: New Delhi

Saxhid Mittal
CFO

PAN: BDIPM5540A
Place: New Delhi

Date: 17th May 2024

e
i

\Jx Acraun
Bl R

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Rajcs] mar Avorn
L T

DIN: 03174336
Place: New Delhi
Date: 17th May 2024

PAN: AVOPRTLS3C
Piace: New Delhi
Date: 17th May 2024




GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN US5101HR2022PLC105440)
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended Mavch 31, 2624
{All amounis are in Rs. Lakhs, except for share data and if otherwlse stated}

A, Equity shave capitaf
1. As at March 31, 2024

Bal as at Aprif 2023 Changes during the current period Balance as at 'March 31, 2024
8,300,000 27,000,000 35,100,060
2. As at March 31, 2023
1 July 25, 2022 (Date of incorporation) Changes during the current period Bad as at "March 31, 2023
- 8,100,000 8,100,000
B. Gther cquity
Particulars Resel.'ve and Sl.arglus
Retsined Earnings

At 1 April 2023 (85.72)
(Loss) for the period {315.28)

Other comprehensive income for the period,

net of income tex * (130
Total comprehensive income For the period {316.58)

At 31 March 2024 (402,31)

Particulars Reserve and Surplus

Retained Earnings
25th July 2622 (Date of incorporation) -

{Loss) for the peried (85.72)
Total comprehensive income for the peviod (85.72)
At 31 March 2023 ‘ (85,72)

* Other comprehensive come represents temegsurerient of the defined benefit plans {net of tax).
This is the audited statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

As per our report of even date
Far K.8, Rao & Co. For and en behalf of the Bonrd of Directors of
Firm Registration Number : 6631098 GMR Hospitality Limited
Chartered Accountants
H.s.o.2 @4 P N -
p \ i -

Sudarshana Gupta M 8 W Arorn
rector

Partner

Membership no.: 223060 ! Charief&d DIN: 03174536
Plage: Now Delhi nianis « Place: New Delhi
Daie; 17th May 2024 w \ACCOURie f Date: 17th May 2024

g %
CFO C

ump'amy Secretary

PAN; BDIPMS5540A PAN: AVOPRY153C
Place: New Dethi Place: Newy Delhi
Date: 17th May 2024 Date: 17th May 2024




GMR Haspitality Limited (CIN US5101 HR2022PLC105440)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AR amounts are in Rs, Lakhs, except for share dala and if otherwice stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Leaschol! Equipment Furniture Computers  Vehicdes  Smallware Totsl  Capitnl Work
improvements and In progress
Cost or valuation
At T April 2023 205.69 11679 0467 796 - 947 340,58 142.64
Additions $73.00 488.86 6153 103.24 - 471.82 1,674.54 572,80
Disposal B - - . - - - -
Disposal/Adjustment (139.35) (8.45) - (5.08} . 2.14) (155,22) (5.85)
Capitalised/ Transfer to Property, plant and -
equipment - “ - - - - (641.36)
As at 31 March 2024 1,039.23 597.20 62.20 106,12 - 3213 1,889.90 63.24
Accumulated deprecigtion
At 1 April 2623 4.45 202 0,00 018 - Q.76 T.42 -
Charge for the period 3520 35,83 293 1236 - 8.45 115,27 -
Dhsposal - - - - - - - -
Capitalised/ Transfer to Property, plant and equn - - - - - - - -
As at 33 Maveh 2024 £9.66 3IT8RS 193 1304 - 2.21 132.69 -
Net book value as al 31 March 2024 979.58 559,35 59.27 93.08 o 45.94 1,737.21 68.24
Net book value as at 31 March 2023 201.24 H4.77 0.67 1.78 - #.71 333.17 142.64
A3 at 31 March 2023
Particulars Leasehold Equipment Furniture Computers  Vehicles  Smallware Total  Capital Work
improvements and In progress
fixtures

Cost or valuation
At 01 April 2022 - - ~ .
Additien 205.69 116,79 8.67 7.96 - 947 340,58 142.64

Disposal / Adjustment - - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2623 205.09 116.7% 0,67 T.96 ~ 9.47 340.58 142.64
Accumulated depreciation

At 01 April 2022 - - - - - - - -
Charge for the year 4.45 2.02 0.00 018 - 0.76 742 -
Disposal . " - - - _ - .
At 31 March 2023 4,48 2,03 9,60 0,18 - 0. 7a 7.42 -
Net ook value as ag 31 March 2023 201.24 114,77 0,67 7.78 - 8.71 333.17 142.64

3a, Intangible assets

Particulars Franchisee Software Tatal
Rights

Cost or valuation

At T April 2023 502 2.04 7.06
Additions 4,90 247 7.37
As at 31 March 2024 5.92 4.51 1443

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2023 - 008 0.08
Charge for the period 0.64 045 1.09
Dispasal - - -

As at 31 March 2024 0.64 0,53 1.17
Net hook value as at 31 Mareh 2024 9.28 398 13.25
Net book value ns at 31 March 2023 5.02 1.96 6.98
Particulars Franchisce Software Total

Rights

Cost or valuntion
At 1 April 2022

Additiens 5.02 2.04 7.06
Disposal - - -
At 31 March 2023 . 5,02 2.04 7.06
At} April 2022 - - -
Charge for the year - 008 Q.08
Disposal / Adjustment - - -
At 31 March 2023 M 0.08 0.08

Net book value a5 at 31 Mavch 2023 502 1.96 6.98




GMR Haospitality Limited (CIN U55101 HR2022PLC105440)
Naotes to financial statements for the year ended Murch 31, 2024
{All amonnts are in Rs. Lakhs, except for shave data and il gtherwise stated)

4. Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) agelng schedule
For Capital work in progress, following ageing schedule shall be given:

CWIP asgeing schedute
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years lore than 3 years Total
FY 2023-2024
Project in progress 68.24 - - . 68.24
Project temporary suspended - - - - -
Total 63.24 - - - 68.24
FY 2022-2023
Project in progress 142,64 - - - 142.64
Project temporary suspended
Total 142.64 - - - 142.64

(This spuce has heen imentionally left blank)




GMR Hospliality Limited {CIN USS101HRZ0ZZPLCI05440)
Notes ba financial stptemeats for the yoar ended March 35, 2624

{All amounts nre In Ra. Lakks, except for share dats and if uthurwise stated)

3. Finuneind unsets & Ciher finsnciak nygets

Amounts pecogmlzed In the Statement of Profit and Loss comyrlses:

Asat Asal Anut As ol
Particolars 3t March 2024 3 Murch 2024 3} March 2023 3 Mureh 2023
Naon-current Current Nop-current Cuirren
Unsceureik, considered good unless staderd otherwise
Non-curreni bank balanoes 118 - - . -
Interast accrued bl not due on bank deposits - 0.04 - 18
Credit card cotlection tecelvable - 10.54 - 168
Sceurity depnit
-Related party 807.36 - - 1900
“Mber thin related party 13.55 0.16 10.00 235
Totul ether financlut asscis 82228 1068 HLBD 23.21
G, Ineome: fax

For the: Year ended  For the perloil from 25ih:

Parficulars st March 2024 July 2022 to 315t March
23
Incime tux oxpense:
~Current tax - -
-Adjustment of tax relaling to carlier periods - -
Deferrud tax expense
Attribuishle to-
Peferred e foredit) (13237 TN
132,37 (26.513)
Total Inunme dux (eredity (132.37) (28.85)
Thx tevogiised in sther comprehensive income
Fue the Year onded  Forthe perlod from
Particutars 3Lst Mvch 2024 25th July 2022 to I1st
March 2073
Deforred tax velsted to ftems recognized tn OCE durlng the yenr
Remeasurement of defined benafit plans (0.44) -
Ineome fax charged to GCT 1044 -

Reconcllintion of taxes fo the: smount computed by applying the stahrory Ineome % cate fo the income hefore faxes Is summarlzed helas;

Particulars For the Year Ended  Fur the povled from 25th]
31 March 2024 July 2022 fn 31t Murch
1023
(loss) befor tax {447.65) (114.53)
Tax using the Company’s domestic appticable tax rate - 25.167% {13237 (28.82)
Tax cflect of:
Adjustment of tex relating 10 carlics periods
Cithers - Q.01
Ineuine tax expenne for the yoar (3350 (2881
oo {ae wsscis (eth
Pevilcalars Vordhe Year Endbedl  For the peslod fran Zith|
31 March 024 July 2022 b 3tst Maveh
Tax assels
Income Tax paid 341 LIY
3.4 118
Current ixx Habitittes
Proviston for Income ix
Total fncome tax assets (not) 341 118
Breferrel fax assels (nef)
a The tex ciicet of deferred fx pssets and labillties comprises of ;
Purlieulurs Yor the Yenr Endfod  For the perind frorm 251k
31 March 2024 July 2022 to 3ist March
Propery, plant ad equipment and intangible assets (19.52) (3.72)]
Employee eelated provisions and liabilitics 23.62 1.27
Recognised i OCT 044 -
1.ossus gy por books catryforward 157.08 3126
Deferred tax ansots (rot) 161.62 28.81
. Movemunt In deferred tux sasetsf (liubjlitles} balanees
Particulars 01 Apsif 2623 pmised im S R d In OCI 31 Murch 2024
of Profit ami Loss
erediti(vharge)
Properly, plant and equipiment und intangible assets 3.9 (1530 £19.52)
Trace reseivables - - - . -
Employes related provisions and Hubilities 1.27 2235 - 1362
Recognised in OC) - . 044 0.44
Lasses as per books vurrylorward 3126 123.82 - 157,08
Deferred tax assuby / (i itfes) (met) 26.81 132.37 LLET] 161.62
Parleulsrs 01 April 2022 Recognised In 51 Rs lsed I OCI 31 Mnreh 2023
of Profit and Losa
oreditficharge)}
Property, plant and equipment and intangibly assets - {3.72) - .72y
Trade receivibles - - - .
Employie relaled provisions and linbihiics - 127 - 1.27
Olhers . - - .
l.osses as per books curvyforwatd - 31.26 - 31.26
Befevrel tax susets / {Habiittics} (met) - 2881 - 2651

{This space has bear infestionatly left blak)




GMR Hospitality Limited (CiN U55101 HR2022PLC105440)
Notes to finaucial statements for the year ended Masch 31, 2024
(Al amsounts zre in Rs, Lakhs, except far share dats and if otherwise stated)

1. Other assets

As at As nt Asnt Asat
Particalars 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Non-current Current Nonr-currens Carrent
Capital advances
Capital advanees to others 410.34 - 146.41 -
{A) 41%4 - 146.41 -
Advarces other than capitat advances
Advances to suppliers - 454 - 11.88
®) N 454 - 1188 |
(rhers
Prepaid Exp Non Current 284 97 - - -
Propaid Exp Curront - 2128 - -
Prepaid expenses - 42.33 0.18 .96
Q) 234.97 63.61 0,18 0.96
= == e
Less: Provisien for doeubtiul balances {m
Total other assets i (A+B+C4E 69531 08.18 146,59 12.54
8. Inyenterigs
As at Agat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
{Al cost or net realizable value whichover is lowsr)
Raw materials and packing materials 42.43 20.24
4248 20.24
9, Trade receivables
As at Asat
Particutars 3t March 2024 31 March 2023
Unseeuted, considered good, unless staled otherwise 308 447
Considercd doubtful - .
3.98 447
Less: Allowance for doubtfial receivables {expected eredit loss allowance} (1.05)
.93 4.47

The carrying amowst of trade receivables approximates their fair value is included tn Note 32
The Compauy's exposure to credit risk, and other allowancgs related to trade receivablos is disclosed in Note 33,
No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the cowpany cither severally or jointly with any other person,

Note:
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule

Particulars

Outstandi

Unbidled*

Noie due

Eor foflowin

Less thun
6 montis

rigds from du date of payment

6 months - 1
year

1- 2 years

More
than 3

2- 3 yeara Total

At 3st March 2024

iy Undi | Trade reqyivables - considered pood

ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - with have significant increasc in credit risk -

iii} Undispiied Trade receivables - credit impaired

iv) Disputed Trade receivables - congidered good

) Disputed Tinde receivables - with haye significant ingrease in crodit risk -

vi) Disputed Trade receivables - eredit impaired

Less: Atiowance for doubtful receivables {expected credit Loss atlowance) -

Less: Allowanees for eredit impaired trade receivables

Total




GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN U55101 HR2622PLC105440)
Notes ta financial staterhents for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rs, Lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

Particulars

Ouestandiug fo

Unbidled*

Note dnz

Less than
& menths

r fallowing periods from due date of payment

& months - 1

year

1- 2 years:

2. 3 yenrs

More
than 3

Total

At 31st March 2023

i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

ii) Undispuicd Trade receivables - with have significant increase in credit risk

iii} Undispured T reccivables - credit impaired

iv) Dispured Trads repeivables - considered good

vh Disputed Trade reccivables - with have significant increase in gredit fisk

vi) Disputed Trade recoivables - credit impaired

Lass; Allowance for doubtfiyl fecivables (expected credit loss alfowance)

Less: Allosvances for credit impadred trade receivables

Tatol

10. Cnsh and cash equivalents

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2024

Az at

31 March 2023

Balances with banks:

- OIL CUTTENt account 475.61 44 87
Cash on hand 1835 3.00
Bank deposit with origisal maturicy within & -3 months 169898 400.00

2,193.44 447.37

(This space has been inteniionatly fefi blank}

( Chartered

* | Accountants

S

i,




GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN 155101 HR2022PLC105440)

Suromary of material accounting policies and other
(A}l amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

11. Equity share capital

pl 'y information to financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024

Particokars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
a, Authorised
Equity Shares .
4,00,00,00¢ equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,000 1,000
4,000 1,804
b. Issued, subscribed and paid op
351,00,000 equity sheres of Rs. 10 each ,fully paid up 3,510 810
3,510 81¢
Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the begiming and end of the period
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Equity shares issued, subscribed and paid up
Shares at the beginning of the period 8,100,000
- Issued during the period 27,000,000 3,100,000
Shares at the end of the period 35,100,000 8,160,000

Terms / rights attached to each classes of shares

The Company has only one class of equity share. The par value of the share is Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of the equity share is entitled to one vote per share and is entitled
to dividend, decldred if any, The paid up equity shares of the Company rank pari-passu in all respects, including dividend, The final dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the upproval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The interim dividend is declared by the Board of Directors. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, afler distribution of ail preferential amounts, if

any. The distribution wilt be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Shureholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

As at
31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

Particuk: Cl [ shar
rHewars s ol shave Number of shares | Percendage of Share {| Number of shares Pereentage of
Holding Share Holding
GMR Alrport Limited Bquity shares 24,570,000 T0.0% 5,670,000 70.0%
Travel Food Services Private Limited Equity shares 10,530,000 30.0% 2,430,000 30.0%
Total 35,106,000 100%: $,100,600 108%

(This space has been imentionally lefi blank)

Caartored
Qccaummlts *
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GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN U55101 HR2022PEC105440)

Notes to financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AH amounts are in Rs, Lakhs, ¢except for share data and if otherwise stated)

12. Financial liabititics: Borrowings

As at As at As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2623 31 March 2023

Non-current Current Non-current Current
Non- current borrowings
Term Loan from # bank [Refer Nets 1 below? 1,278.53 - . -
Current borrowings
Term Loan from a bank [Refer Note 1 below) - 153.42 - -
Total borrowings 1,278.53 183,42 - -

1. HDFC Term Losn

i. The Company has availed a credit facility of Rs 23 Crore (Rs 20 Crore Term Loan plus Rs 3 Crore Overdraft) from HDFC Bank Limited foc a period of
B years with 1 year moratoriumm period, payable in 28 quarterly equal instaliments stacting from the date of disbursement of first tranche, The Company
repayment will commences from 29th August 2024 and duc 111 date 4th May 2031. The company has macde a dravwdown of Rs 14.32 crore as on 3lst
March 2024. The interest rate is based on the 3-month ¥ bills plus spread,
ii. The Company has also availed credit facility of Rs 44 crove (Rs 44 crore Term loan) from HDFC Bank vide sanction letter CAM 011711

230111, however same has not been utilised during the year , the purpose of loan is to utilise the funds in the capex infusion , However the facility has not
been wtilized til? date. EMI for Repayment of Loan shall commence from the date of booking of Loan.

iit. The charge on the loans against Moveble properties, Current Assets has been created,

iv.The Facility has been availed against the assets of the company as follows :
a}Stocks And Receivables - Exclusive charge on all current and future current assets of the company.

b)Plant And Machivery - Exclusive charge on all current and future Movable Fixed Assets of the company.
¢)Pledge Of Shares - Exclusive Pledge on shares held by GMR Airports Limited (19.6%) and Travel Food Services Private Limited(8,4%). (T'otal - 28%

of Shares)
13, Other fi inl linhilities
As at As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Non-current Current Noa-current Current
COther financial liabilities carrvied ot amortised cost
Deposits from qustomers 2919 486,79 - -
Deferred Revenue- Non Current 3.05 2,53 - -
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings - 10.0% - -
Employees payable - 69.25 - 329
Payable for property, plant and equipment - 149,02 - 167.79
Total other financial liabilities 32.34 717.63 - 171.08
14, Provisions
As at As at Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity payable 26.36 0.22 4.93 0.12
26.36 0.22 4.93 0,12
==
13, Gther linbilitivs
As at Asat As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2624 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Non-current Curreat No-current Current
Statutery dues payable - 7947 - 3634
Advanee fram customer - 292 - -
Total other linhilities - 82.39 “ 36,54
i6. Trade payables
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 28.98 26.56
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micto enterprises and small enterprises 351,54 214,69
420.52 41,25
Out of the nhove:
-Payable for purchases 40.90 78.76
-Payable for expenses 379.62 162.49
420,52 241,25

hartered

countants) * }f




MR Hospitality Limited (CIN US3101 HR2022PLC105440)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AH amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, except for share data snd if otherwise stated)

Trade payables i hedule other thao capital creditors
Particalars Provision Not due Less than 1 yenr 1-2 year 2-3 year More Total
than 3
At 31st March 2024
i) MSME (Note (A)y - - 2368 28.98
ji} Ofhers 279.6% - 111.85 391.34
iif) Disputed dues - MSME - -
iv) Bi d dues - Others - -
279.69 - 140.83 420,52
Particulars Provision Not due Less than § year 1-2 year 2-3 year More Total
than 3
year
1At 31st March 2023
Ii! MSME (Note (A)) - - 26.56 26.56
Others 139,12 - 75.57 214.69
i i dues - MSME - -
iv) Disputed ducs - Others - -
139.12 - 102.13 241,25
Nate (A):

MEME Vendors does not include the medium enterprises related vendors

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)




GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN US510EHRZ022FPLC10S440)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al Rmounts are in Rs, Lakiis, except for share data and if otherwise stated}

17. Revenue [rom operations

Particulars For the year ended March  For the period firom 25th July
31,2024 2022 to 31st March 2023
Sale of foods and beverages 3,203.70 45085
3,203,70 450.85
Disclosure in terms of Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customer
Contract Balances
Particulurs For the year ended March  For tiwe period from 25th July
31,2024 2022 to 315t March 2023
Receivables:
-Nen Cutrent (Gross) - -
-Current {Grossy 3.98 4,47
-Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) (1.05) -
Contract Asseis . .
Advance From Customers 29 -
‘The Company’s revenue from operations disaggregated by primary geographical markels is as tollows:
Far the year ended
31-03-2024
Particuinrs Food & Beverages
India 3203.70
Quiside N
Toinl 3,203,710
Tor the period from 25th

July 2022 to 315t March

Particulars Food & Beverages

India 45085
Qutside N
Total 450.35

The Company’s reveaue from operations disaggregated by pattern of revenue recognition is as follows:

For the year ended

31-03-2024
Particulars Food & Bevernges
Services rendered at a point in time 3,203.70
Services transferred over time i
Total 3,205,760
For the period from 25th
July 2022 to 315t March
Particulars Food & Beverages
Services rendered at a point in time 450.85
Services transferred over ime -
Total 450,85
Recanciliation of revenue [rom operation recognised in the stat t of profit and loss with the contracted price;
Particulars For the year ended| For the peviod from 25th July
31-03-2024 2022 to 31st March 2023
Revenue ps per contracted price 3,203.70 45085
Adjustments:
« Sigmificant financing component - -
Total 3,203,70 450.85




L8, Otber income

Particulars

For the year ended Morch

For the period from 25(h July

31,2024 2022 to 31st March 2023
Interest income from bank deposits 14.3] 12.00
Meticnal Int Tacome on Deposit frm Concessionaire 322 -
Amortisation of Deferred Income 0.52 -
Net gaie en Sale of lnvestment 27.34 -
Miscellaneous income 172 0.94
47.11 12.94
19. Cost of materials consumed
Particulzrs For the year ended March  For the period from 25th July
35,2024 2022 to 315t March 2023
Opening stock of raw material and packing materialy 2024 .
Add: Purchases 718.02 151.91
Less: Closing stock of raw material and packing materials 4248 20.24
705,78 131.67

20. Employee benefits

Particutirs For the year ended March  For the period from 25th July
31,2024 2022 to 3ist March 2023
Sglaries and other ellowances 1.003.34 136.37
Contribution to provident and other funds 89.34 11.74
Gratuity 15.79 R
Staff welfare expenses 57,73 2217
£.170.20 175,33
21, Concession fees
Particulars For the year ended March  Tor the period from 25th July
’ : 31,2024 2022 o 31st March 2023
Concession fees 73914 101.08
739,74 101.08 |
22, Other expenses
Parlicalars For the year ended March  For the period from 25th July
31,2024 2022 to 315 March 2023
Marketing fund charge 3780 532
Royalty 102.80 in
Business Promotion 12.16 .13
Management fees 56.70 7.98
1T maintenance charges 41,29 6.82
Legal dand professional Expenses * 38.66 5.88
Rent- Machine 6.94 0.59
Airport service charges 118.72 4,65
Electricity and water charges and Gas charges 134,29 12.83
Bid expenses 45.10 1.87
House keeping Expenses 13.50 4.42
Staff Accomodsation &nd local conveyance Expenses 30.09 51.83
Travelling expenses 17.24 26.50
Consumables 3498 71.54
Licenss fees 18.53 4,32
Rates and taxes 22.51 9.41
Repairs and mainzenance: - -
- computer 0.61 0.10
 equipment 2.44 1.28
~ others 1.13 011
Cammunication Expenses 2.50 601
Insurance 12.59 -
Printing and stationary 6.92 1.74
Advertisement Expenses - 0.36
Collection charges Paid 17,53 2.76
Amortisation of Security Deposit 6.80 .
Notional Interest Expense on Bleposit frm Concessionaire 0.50 -
Proviston for doubtfu! advances 1.05 -
Miscellaneous expenses 22.69 1.1
850.06 159,97

Chartered
» L Agooontants ‘*’J
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Remuneration to Auditors® {Included in Legal and Professional) Far the year endei?‘l:;;: For t;‘; 2‘::?:12?;::::2'{:'3
L 2022 to J1st March 2023}

As auditors

Statutory audit of Company 4.13 0.30

Limited Reviews 0,59 0.29

Tax Audit 0.29 -

Total 5.02 0.59

23, Finance costs

For the year ¢nded March

For the perivel from 25th July

Partieulars
34,2024 2022 to 31st March 2023
Interest on tetm loan 65.58 ~
Other charges 30.74 0.03
116.32 0.03

24. Depreciation and amartisation expense

For the year ended March

For the period fron: 25th July

Particulars
31,2024 2022 to 31st March 2023
Depreciation of tangible assets 115.27 F.A2
Amortisafion of intangible assets 1.09 0.08
116,36 7,50




GMR Haspitality Limited (CIN U351 BR2022PLC105440)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{AH pmouuts ave in Rs. Lakhs, except for share datn and if otberwise stated)

25. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is caleulated by dividing the (loss) for the year attributabie to equity shareholders of the Company by the weigited averapge number of equity
shares outstandsng during the year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (loss) attributable to equity hofders by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares thet wouid be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares inte
equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars For the period ended For the period from

March 31, 2024 251k July 2022 to 31si

March 2023

(loss} atiributable to equity holders fer basic and diluted samings; (A) (315.28) {85.72)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (B) 16,121,038 8,100,000
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution (C) 16,121,038 8,100,000
Basic earnings per share {Rs.) {A/B) (198) {1.78)
Diluted eamings per share (Rs.} (A/C) (1.96) {1.78}
MNorpinal value per share (Rs ) 1000 .00

26, Countingent Linbilities {te the cxtent not provided for)
There is a Nil contingent liabilities.

7. Capital commiimenis

Particulars For the year ended For the period from
March 31, 2024  23th Jnly 2022 to 313t
March 2023
Eor — P -
fimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net| 445.55 47250
of advances)
28, Other commitments

As per the license agreement executed between GMR Goa International Airports Limited (GGIAL) and GMR Hospitality Limited dated 16th
November' 2023 , GMR Hospitality Limited bas paid the interest free refindable security deposit amaunt of Rs. 384.52 Jacs and company is lable to
pay concsssion fee @20.70% of tevenue during the tenure of the agreement. The Aggreement executed for the period of 15 years sffective from the
date of access date.

As per the license agreement executed between GMR Hyderabad {nternational Aizports Limited (GHEAL) and GMR Hospitality Limited dated Odth
December' 2023 , GMR Hospitality Limited has paid the interest free refundabie security depesit amount of Rs. 714,66 lacs and company is liable to
pay concession fee @24.03% of revenue during the tenure of the agreement. The Aggreement executed for the period of 10 years , operations are not
vet commencad.

29, Early Termination of contract with GAL

The license Agreement executed between ("GAL") and GMR Hospitality Limited (“Licensee”) pursuant to which GAL has granted license to the
Licensee to set up, oparate, maintain and manage retail oultet at the Manohar International Airport at Goa("Airport") on the terms and conditions as
more specifically set out in the License Agreement. In this regard, the Parties have had discussion on the subject matter and based on such discussions,
the parties have agreed to terminate the Licence Agreement on mutual consent basis w.ef. 31.12,2023 ("Termination Date"). However, the Licensee
may continue to use the Location(s) on terms and conditions 25 per the New License Agreernent executed with GMR Goa Infernational Airpoert Limited.
Now therefore, the Parties agree as follows:-

i. The Licensee shall pay/settie a1l outstanding dues payable under the License Agreement:

ii. The Licensee undertakes not to make any further claims, whether menetary or otherwise, aginast GAL with respect ta the License Agreement and/or
its termination thereof.

(This space has been intentionally tefl blank)
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GMR Hospitality {intted (CIN USS101HR2622PT.C105448)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amiounts nre in Rs. Lakhs, except for share dota and if otherwise stated)

30, Empl benefit obl

The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

Defined contribution plan
The Company pays provident fund contributions 1o the appropriate gavernment authorities at rate specified as per regulations,

An amount of Rs. 72.18. Takhs hes been recognised as an expense in respect of the Company’s contribution to Provident Fund deposited with the relevant authorities and
has been shown under Empleyes benelits expense in the Statement of Profic and Loss.

Defined benefit plan « gratuity unfunded

The Company operates gratuity pian wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days of total basic salary last drawn for each completed year of
service. Grasuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, separation, death or permarient disablement, in terms of the provisions of the
Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972,

The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit pian as required under Ind-AS 19 - Emplayee Benefits:

(D) Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation:

Partictdars 31 Mavch 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the perind 5.05 -
Current service cost . 19.42 505
Interest expense ~ 037 -
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 19.79 5.05
Actuarial loss / {gain) on obligation arising from change in experiznce adjustment 1.74 -

Actuarial (Gain) / loss on chiigation arising from change in financial assumptions . - -
Actuarial {Gain) / Joss on obfigation arising from change in demographic adjustment -

Actuarial loss / (gain} recopnised in OCI 1.74 -
Benefit paid - -
Present value of defined benefit obligation ns at the end of the period 16.58 5.85

{i¥) Amount recognised in the Balance sheet

Barticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Dafined benefit obligation 26.58 5.05
26,58 5,85

Bencfit linbility

Particulars . 3t March 2024 31 March 2023
Current 4.22 012
Nor- current 26.36 4.93

{This space bas been intentionally ieft blapk}




GMR IHospitality Limited (CIN U35101 HR2022PLC105440)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

30. Ewployee benefit obligations (continued)

(i) The principal nssumptions nsed in determining gratuity obligation for (he Compamy's pians are shown below:

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability
Withdrawal rate:

Particuiars 31 March 2624 31 March 2023
Economic assumptions
Disconnt rate % 7.13 7.39
Salary growth rate %% 3,50 5.50
Dencgraphic assumptions:

Retirement age (years) GO 60

100% of JALM {2012-14) 100% of 1ALM {2612-14)

upto 30 years 5% 5%
From 31 to 44 years ki) 3%
Above 44 years 2% 2%

Assumptions regarding future mortaltty have been based on published statistics and morzality tables.

{iv) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation ta changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate
Impact on defined berefit obligation due to 0.50% increase in discount rate (2.10} (0.38)
Fmpact on defined benefit obligation due te 0.50% decrease in discount rate 236 0.43
Salary escalation rate

Impact on defined benefit obligation due to 0. 50% increase in salary escalation rate 239 43
Impact on defined benefit obligation dug to 0.50% decrease in salary escalatior rate 224 (0.39)

The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in above assumption while holding alt other assumptions constant, The changes in some of the assumptions may
be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial essumptions, the same method {present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit methed at the end of the reporting year) has been applied, as has been applied when

caleulating the provision for defined benefit plan recognised in the Balance Sheet.
The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous years.
Risk exposure

The defined benefit planis exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are datailed below:
Change in discount rates; A decrease in discount yield will increase plan Habilities.

Mortality table: The gratuity plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, 50 increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in plan

liabilities.

(v} Defined bencfi Yiabitity

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 18.56 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

yParticnlars Less than a year Between 1-2 years  Betwoen 2-5 yoars Over § years

Total

31 March 2024 0.22 015 1.68 24.53

26.58

(This space hax been frtentiorally left bank)
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GMR Hespitality Limited (CIN US5101HR2022PLC105440)
Notes to financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

31. Fair value measurements and financial instroments

{i} The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categorics as of March 31, 2024 are a5 under:

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Financial agsets/ {financial
linbifities) at fair vatue throngh
profit or loss (FYVTELY

Financial assets/{financial
lialilities) a1 fair value theough
other comprehensive income
{EFYTOCh

Total carrying valne

Total fair value

Tnvestrnent in uris of Mutua! Fund

(i) The carrying value and fair vatue of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 are as under:

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Financial assets/ {inancinl
linbilities) at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financinl assets/(financial
Habilities) at fair value through
other comprehonsive income
{FYTOCH

Total carrying value

Tolal fair valae

Financinl assets/(fi ia} liabilities)
Investment in unifs of Midual Fond

(iif) Fair value hizrarchy of asssts and lisbilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

a3 of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as under;

Fair valoe nteasurement at end

Fair value measurement at
end of the reporting year

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 of the reporting year using As at March 31, 2023 using
Levell Level |
Financial assets
Investment in units of Mutual Fund - - - -
(iv) Financizal assets and financial fiabilities that are not measuzed at fair value are as under;
. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Particulaes Awgrtised Cost Fair value Amortised Cost Fair value
Financial assets
Security deposits 1.127.25 1.127.25 - -
Cash and cash equivaleats 2,193.44 2,193.44 447 87 44787
Trade receivables 2.93 2.93 247 4.47
Bank Balances other than casl: and cash 138 138 i }
egquivalents ) )
Other financial assets 15.13 15.13 33,21 33.21

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSEYS 3,340.13 3.340.13 485,55 485,55
Financigl ligbilities
Bot“rowil}_g 1,431,95 1,431.95 - -
Other financial Liabilities 749,88 749.8%8 171.08 171.08
‘Trade payables 42052 420,52 241.25 24125
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABLITIES 2602.35 ‘2602.35' 412.33 412,33

The carrying value of sbove financial assets and financial liahilities approximate its fair value.

'




GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN USSI01HR2022PLC105440)
Naies to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All ammounts are in: Rs. Inkhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

32, Finaneial risk management

The Corpany has exposure to Lhe following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk |

= Liquidity risk ;

* Market Risk - Interest rate

Risk manngement lramework

The Board of Direstors of the Company has formed a risk management policy to frame, implement and menitor the risk management plan for the Company. The Board of
Dizectors is responsible for reviewmg the risk maragement policies and ensuring its effectiveness,

The Company's risk managerent policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company 1o set appropriate risks limits and conirols and {0 oenitor risks
and adherence to timits, Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes and the Company's activitics.

As per the policy, Board monitors compliance with Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risk faced by the Company.

() Credit risk
The mazimum exposure lo credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these fi ink assets in the bal sheet
[Particulnrs 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023

Trade receivables 2.93 4,47
Cash and cash equivalents | 2193.44 447.87
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - -
Invesiments

Other financial assets

current and non-current) 83298 33.21
Credit risk is the risk of financial less to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a firancial instrement fails to meet its contractual cbligations,

Since the Company's major sales are in cash at the food outlets, thus the Company's exposure te eredit sale is very low l.e. credit sales consist of very low portion of total sales.
Trade receivabies are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers primasily located in India. The Company does momitor the economic
environment in which it operates. The Company manages its Credit risk through continuousty monitoring of credit worthiness of its custemers.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit Joss model to assess the impairment loss or gain, The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected
credit loss allowance for trade receivabies. The provision matrix takes into account available intemnal credit risk factors such as the Company's histerical experience of
customers. Based on the business envirenzent in which the Company operates, management considers that the trade receivables (ather than receivables from government parties
and related parties), are in default (eredit impaired} only if the payments are more than 90 days past due however the Company based upen past trends determine an impairment
allowance fo loss on receivables ovtstanding for more than 180 days past due to the extent where the Gompany is certain that the amount is not recoverable.

Trade receivables include dues primarily from airlines and a party which are fragmented and are not concentrated to individual customers. Trade receivables are relating to
reveriue generaied from sale to airlines of Rs, 2.93 lakhs. Trade receivables are generally realised within the credit periad.

As on 31 March 2024 | the company do net hiave any trade receivable which have significant increase in cradit risk or oredit impaired.

Fhe Company’s e'xpusure to eredit risk for trade vecelvables (uet) is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unbilled N -
Not dug . 4,47
1-98 days past due 293 .
91 to 180 days past due * - "
More than 180 days past due # b -
2,93 4,47

* The Company believes that the unimpaired amcunts that are past due by more than 9C days are still collestible in full, as it 1s recejvable from government parties and related
parties.

# The Company based upon past trends determing an impairment allowance for loss on receivables outstanding for more than 180 days pest due after considering the subsequent
payment,

The allowance for lifetime expacted credit loss on custemer balances for the year ended 33 March 2024 was insignificant and hence the same has not been recognised.

Movement jn the allownnce for inrpairment in respect of trade receivables :

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the period - -
Amount provided during the period 1.05 -

Balance at the end of the period 1.05 -




GMR Hospitatity Livited (CIN USSIHILHRIOZIPLCIOS430)
Nokes to financint statenents for the yeur ended March 31, 2024
(All mmounts are in Rs. lakhs, except for shave data and iFotherwive stated)

32, Financlal risk munagement {continucd)
{ii} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the tisk thnt the Compaay will engounter difficrlly in meeting the obligntions associaied with its financial liabilitics that arc settled by delivering cash or another
finencial assets. The Company’s appronch (o manage liquidity is w have sufficient liguidity to wecr it's linbifitics when (hey are due, under bath normal and siressed contlitions,
without incerting unaceeplable losses or risking demage to the Comprny's reputation.

The Company believes tha its liquidity positicn, including iotel cosh and bark belances (including bnuk deposits) of Re. 2193.44 takhs anticipated fiture intesmilly genernted funds
from operations, end its fully aveilable, revolving wndravn eredit facility (fuaded) off Ks. 300 Inkhs will caable it 4o meet ils feture knowa obligations m the ordinnry course of
busingss, Howover, if tiquidity noeds were 1o nrise, ibe Compmty believes it has accoss to financing vahic of bered assets, which shoufd enable it to mest its
angeing capital, operating, and other liquidity requirements. The Company will continue to consider various borrewing (0 maximize liquidity and supplement cash rejhineients as
neCessacy.

The Company's liquidity i PIOCRES £§ itored by includes the following:
« Bay to day fuuding, maraged by meniloring future cash flows to ensvie thet requitements can be met.
= Maintaining rolling forccasts of the Compaay s iiquidity position on the basis of expected cash Mows.
- Maintaining diversified crodit lines.

Exposure to liguidity risk
The following are the iming ities of finanpisl lizbilities &y the reporting date. The amounis arc gross and midiscounted, and includes interest acerued bt not due
on barrowings.

Particylars Contrpetual cash flows
Carrying antount 0-1 years 1-5 years More than 8 yoars Toal
31 March 2024
Borrowings (Tncluding Accrued Interest) 144199 16346 8L§.26 460.27 144199
Trade pavables 42052 420.52 - . 420.52
Security deposil received 521.59 - 108.0¢ 413,59 521.59
Capital Creditors 149.02 149.62 - - 149.02
Employce Payable 60.25 69,25 - - 69.25
260238 3{!’5&‘.@6 926,26 B73.36 Zﬁﬂl&s
Purticulars S Contractuol cash Bows
Cart;
Ay Hrike B-1 vears 1-5 yeagy More than 3 veary Tatal
31 March 2023
Trede pevables 241.238 241.25 - - 24125
Capital Creditors 167.76 167.79 - - 167.79
400 64 T B P 300,04
e it i

{iify Market Risk - Tiicrest rice

Inggrest rate rigk is the risk tiat the future cash flows of'a firancial iustrunsent will Nucwate Beeause of chaziges in market intercs| ralcs. The Compaty”s cxposure 1 ihe risk of
changes in market fmerest raies relates primarily to the Company’s borrawings with fioaling inierest rates.

(i) Capital management

For the putpose of the Company s capital management. copital incudes issued equity eapital. and aft ather conity reserves atributabie to the erquity holders of the Company, The
priziasy objective of the Compuny's capital management s 1o maxithise the sharcholder valye,

The Company menpges #s capital structore and makes adjsstments in light of changes in i ditions aud the i of the fnaneial covenamts, To mainlai or adjust the
capitnf steuctnre, the Cempany may adjust the dividend payment 1o shaveholders, retum capital to sharckoldors or issue niew sharcs. The Compeny wmatitors capilal using a gearing ralio,
which is tota! net debt divided by tofal squily phus tatal net debt. The Company's policy is o kesp 1be gearing ratio bekow 90%, which is reviewed at end of cach financial year,

[Particufars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Long tern1 borrewingy 1278.53 -
Current borrowings 153.42 -
Total Borrowings {1) 143195
Less: -
() Cesh and cnsh equivalcms 219344 447.87|
{iiy Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalenls . .
(i) Cursenl imvesimenis - -
Teotal cavh & investments (I1) 219344 447.87
Net debts (A} 1.H (761 48) (447.87)
Sharg Capital 351000 810.00
Other Equity 402.31) 85.72)
TFatal Equity {(H) 310769 724,28
Total equity and total et delbts (C=A+B) 2346.21 276.41
Gearing vaffo (%) (A/C) : -32% -163%

In aeder fo achieve this overall abjestive, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aima us chswre that it mexts financiel covenants aitached to the intareal-bearing
loans and borrowings that defiac capital structure requirements. There have been no breachies tn (e financial covenants of any intercst-bearing loans and borrowing in the current
period.

No.changss were made in the ohjectives, pelicies or prosesses for managing capital during the vears snged March 31, 2024 and Mareh 31, 2023,

& Interestrate risk and sensitivity

The Company’s exposure fo the isk of changes in market interest rates relstes primatily to loag term debt. The manegoment maintains only the fised debt, Borrowings issucd at
variable rates expose the Company 1o cash How interest rate risk. As at March 31, 2024, 100% of the Cowpanty’s barrowings arc at a (oating rate of interest,

“With all other varinisles held constant, the Collowing table demonstretes the impaot of bozrowing cost on floating ralc portion of joans and borrowings

Enferest rate Sensdtivity Tnerease/Decrense ia | Effect on Profit
Busis painis Before Tas,

Four the year ended March 31, 2024 0.25 191

Term Loans -0.25 -1

For thr year ended March 31, 2023
‘Term Loans NA NA

{1iis space kas been intentionaily left dlank)




GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN US5101HR2022PLCI0S440)
Netes to financial statements for the year ended Muarch 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Rs, lakhs, except for share datn and if otherwiee stated)

33. Retated party disclosures
. List of related parties and nature of relationship:

(i) Holding Company
GMR Airports Limited

(i) Entity exercising joint contrel

Travel Food Services Private Limited (H.0, Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Limited)

(iit) Fellow Subsidiary

GMR Goa International Airport Limited

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited
Dethi International Airport Limiteci

{iv) Common THreetorship { Entities i which directors of the compnay is a direcior)

Travel Food Services (Dethi Terminel 3) Private Limited
Travel Fond Services Kolkata Private Limited

Travel Food Services Chennai Privata Limited

Travel Retnil Services Private Limited

(¥) Key Managerial Pevsonnel | KMP|

Name of KMP

Varun Sunil Kapur - Directer

Rajesh Arora - Director

Gadi Radha Krishna Babu - Director

Jagdish Kapoor- Independent Director

Mr. Mohan Rao Murthi - Independent Director
Sehit Mittal - CFO

NV Rao - Company Secretary.

(vi} sele-praprietovship in which Relative of n KMP is owner
JVS & Associates

b. Traneactions with velated paviies during the yenvs

Date of Appeinhnent
25-Tul-2022
25-Tuk-2022
25.Jul-2022

22-Dec-2023
22-Dec-2023
11-0ct-2023
22-Dec-2023

Party Nane (Natare of Relationship)

Nature of trapsaction

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Travel Food Services Private Limited, Deputation charges 23.44 -
(Entity exescising joint contrel) Operator Fees 36,70 -
Reimbursement of Capital Expenditure paid by related party 118.06 21161
Reimbursement of other expenses paid by related party - 12.65
Trade payables . 7.36)
Infusion of Equity share capital §10.00 243.00
Payable against others - 26.91
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Eimited Trade Fayable - L.57
{Entity exerciging joint ¢conirol} Reimbursement of other expenses paid by related party - 4.45)
Travel Food Services Kolknta Private Limited Deputation charges 5.28 .
(Comman Divectorship)
T'ravel Food Services Chennni Private Limited Deputetion charges 0.69 -
(Cemmon Directorship)
‘Travel Retail Services Private Limited Sale of Food 264 -
{Common Directorship)
JVS & Associates Providing Secretarial Services 0.34 -
(sole-proprictorship in which Refative of a KMY is owner)
GMR Gon International Alrports Limited Prepaid expenses ( Non- Current) 265,63 4.65
{Fetlow Subzidiary) Prepaid expenses (Current) 19.61
Security Deposit 92.69
Bidding Expenses. 25.00 12.83
Advance against purchisse of Muchine 0.19 -
Advance due to TDS deducted against EOT document fees 0.20 g
Concession Fees 261.44 B
Airport Service Charges 153,50 -
Electricity & Water charges & Gas charges 143.01 -
{Gas Charges - 1.87
Rent for Porta cabin 7.08 -
Marketing Fund 12.63 -
TEAP pass fee 2.92 -
EOI Documsnt Charges 10.00 -
GMR Hyderabad International Alvports Limited Advance paid against EO1 Document Fees 510 «
{Fellow Subsidiary) Mon Refundable Security Depesit paid 5,00 -
Refundable Security Deposit paid T14.66 -
Delbi Intermacioral Airport Limited Security Deposit Refinded {100 E
{Fellow Subsidiary)
GMR Airperts Limited Reimbursement of Incorporation expenses - 236
(Holding Company) Infusion of Equity sharg capitat 1,890.00 367.00
Concession Feey 478.30 10t .08




GMR Hospitality Liited (CIN U55t01HR2022FLCL0S440)
Nates to financinl atniements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al amounts are in Rs. lakhs, exeept for share data nod if otherwise stated)

. Dutstanding balances

party {(Nature of Relntipnship

Nature of fransactio

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Reimbursement of ¢ther expenses paid

Travel Food Services Piivate Limited by related party - 12,55
{Entity exercising joint contrel) Trade Payable .63 0.2
Payablo against others - 34,15
Qperator Fees Payable 56.70 -
Beputstion Charges 4.50 -
‘Travel Food Services (Delbi Terminad 3) Private Limlted Trade Payabies - 1.57
(Common Directorship) L\;‘r:;;!e ¢ oarty ofother exp pad - 4.46
Travet Retail Services Private Limited Trade Receivable 0.27 -
(Conmagn Directorship)
JVE & Associates Providing Secretariat Services 0.26 E
{sole-proprietorship in whicls Relative of 4 KMF is ewnier)
GMR Gon International Airports Limited Trade Payables - 16.29
{Fellow Substdiary) Propaid expenses { Non- Current) 265,635 -
Prepaid expenses (Current) 19.61 -
Security Deposit 92.69 -
Airpart Service Charges ' 69.62 -
Electticity & Water charges & Gas charges 85.17 -
Marketing Fund 12.63 -
TEAP pass fez Payable A7) .
Concession fees Payable 96.75 -
Rent for Porta cabin 1.08
GMR Hydeeabad International Alrports Lindted Refundable Security Deposit paid 714.66 -
(Fellow Subsidiary) .
GMR Airports Eimited Payable against Incorporation expenses - 236
(Holding Campany) Trade Payabies - 40.19
All the ransactions with related partics are madg on terns equivalent to thoss that prevail in arm's length pansactions and are witin ordinary corse of businass,
34, Additions! regulatory disclosures
n) The foliowing are analviical ratio for the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars Note 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023 Varianre
() Cuwrvent ratic « 0] 1.69 1.13 0.49
(i) Debt equity ratio - [CH 0.46 - -
{itf) Debt Service Coverage Ratio - i) (2.03} - -
(iv) Refurn on equity ratio {%) - §iv) {0.16) {0.12) 03v
{v) Tnventory Tarnover rafio - v} 102.16 2228 31.59
{vi) Trade receivables turnover ratio - [1%1) 865,80 100.86 758
{vil) Trade payables turnover rafio - (vii) 220 0.63 249
(viii) Net capital turnover ratio - (vili} 3.40 153 (6.55)
(ix) Net profit ratie (%) - {ix) 0.10) {0.1%) (C.48)
(x) Retarn on capital employed ratio (%) - ix) (0.07) (0.11) {0.33)
{xi} Retwrn on invesiment ratio {%) - {xi} 0.04 0.03 0.32




GMR Hespitality Limifed (CIN USS10IHR262IPLCL05440)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are In Rs, likhz, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

Reason for Yariance

i. Current Ratin:- Tncroase due to borrowings taken during the financial year.

ii. Debt Equity Ratio:- Dug to loans taker to meet capital infusion requirements.

ifi.Debt Service Coverage Ratie - Due (o Joans taken to meet capital infusion requirements,

iv.Return on equity ratip (%) - Reduced due to the interest cost on loans taken for projects.

v. Inventory Turnover ratin - Revenue from operntions increase in the current financial yeer.

vi.Trade receivables turaover ratio - Revenue from operations increase i the current foancial year.

v Trade payables turngver eatio - As number of operational outlets have increased therefore propotion of trads pavables have increased in proportion of revenug.
il Net capital rnover ratio - increase in working cupirs requirement per outiet in proportion to increase in revenue.

ix, Net profit ratio (%) - Net profit reduced due to depriciation oz capital cost and inlerest cost ingisered for expansion of out lets,

(x) Return an capital employed ratie {%) - Due to incresse in capital employed and interest cost incurred on debt in current financial year.
(xi)Return on investrront eatio (%) - Reduce due to investment madg for short period only.

Notes ;

(i) Current ratio = Current Asseis / currentt linbillties

31 March 2023

Particulars 31 Mavch 2024

Inventeries 4248 2024
Investments - -
‘Trade receivables 293 4.47
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 2,193.44 447 87
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - -
Other financial assets 10.68 23.21
Other current assers GE.15 12,84
Current Assets 4,317.69 508.63
Pavticulars

Borrowings 153.42 -
Trade payables 420.52 241.25
Qther financial liabilities 717.63 171,08
Pravisions ¢.22 6.12
Other ¢urrent liabilities 8239 36.34
Current Liabiljties 1,374, 19 448,79
Waorking Capital 943,50 59,84
Current Ratio 1.69 113

(ii)Debt Equity rativ = Total Debt/ Shareholder Equity

Pavticulars 31 Marcl: 2024 31 March 2023
Borrowings 1,431.98 -
Shareholders Eguity i 3,107.69 724.28
Debt Egnity Ratie 46 -

(i) Debt Service Caverage ratio = Earnings avaitable for debt service/ Debt service

Note {A)

Particalars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit afier taxes {315.28) (85.72)
Add:

Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizations 116.36 7.50
Finance costs 65,58 -
other adjustments like kass on sate of Fixed assets ste. . - -
Enmings available for debt service (133.34) {78.22)
Note {B)

FParticulars : 31 March 2024 31 Minrch 2023
Interest on Borrowings G5.58 -
Debt service 65,58 -
Debt Service Coverage Rntio . (2.03) -

(iv) Return on Equity ratig = Not Profite efter taxes - Preference Dividend (it any)/ Sharcholder' s Equity

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Mavch 2023
Profit after taxes {31528} (85.72}
Shazeholders Bquity {Opening + Closing)/2 ) 1,915.99 724.28
Retwrn on Equity Ratio {0.16) (012}
(¥) Iuve_sl_fg_ry Turngver ratio = Revenus fram operations/Aversge Inventory

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Revenue Frem Operations 3,203.70 450.85
Toventoly 4248 26.24
Averpge Invantory 3136 10.12
Inventory Trunover Ratia 102,16 22.28
{vi} Trade Receivables Twmover ratio = R from opy ns/Average A Receivabl

Particalary 31 March 2024 31 Mnarch 2023
Revenue From Operaticns 3,203.70 450,85
Accounts Receivable 2.93 4.47
Average Account receivable 3.7 4.47
Trade Receivable Ratio £65.80 100,86




GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN US5101HR2022PLC105440)
Notes 1o financial statemenis for the yoar ended March 31, 2024
(AJl amiounts are in Re. lakhs, except for shave data and if otherwise stated)

(vii) Trade Payables Tuntever raiio = Net credif pm'chnses:'Aver:l__ge Accounts Payable

Particuwdurs 31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Net Credit Purchase 128.02 151.91
Accounts Payable 420.52 241.25
Averape Accounts Payable 330.89 241 25
Trade Phyahle Turnover Ratie 2.20 0.63

(viii) Net Capital Tarnover ratio = Revenue frrom operations/Working Capital

Particwims 31 March 2024 31 Warch 2023
Inveniories 4248 20.24]
Invesiments - -
Trade receivables 2.93 447
Cash and cash ecrnvalents 2,193.44 ° 447.87
Bank balances other than cash and cash aquivalents - -
Qther financial assets 10.68 2321
Other cutrent 4ssets 68,15 12.84
Current Assets () 2,317.69 508,63
Borrowings 15342 -
Trade payables 420.52 24125
Orher financial Yizbilities 711,63 171.08
Provisions 0.22 0.2
OGther current fiabilities 8239 36.34
Current Liabilities (b) 1,374.19 448.79
Current Liabilities(excluding Nen current maturities)(b) 1,374.19 448,79
Worldng Capital ¢ = a=b 943.50 59,54
Revenure fram aperations 3,263.70 45085
Net Capital Turnpver ratio 3.48 153

{ix) Net Profit Ratio = Net Profit/ Net Sales

Particuials 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net Profit (316.58) {85.72)
Sales 3,203.70 450.85
Net Profit Ratio {0,10) (0,19)
{x) Returtt on Capital Employed ratio = Earning before interest nnd taxes/Capital Employed [Refer Note (C) helow}

Nete (C)

Particufars 31 Maveh 2024 31 Mavch 2023
Share capital 3,510.00 810.60
Other equity (462.31) (85.72)
Less: Intangible assets and Goodwill (13.25) {6.98)
Tangble Net Worth 3,004.44 71730
Total Debt 1,431.65 -
Capltal Employed . 4,526.39 T17.30
Earnings before interest and Tax {331.33} {78.19)
Retumn on Capital Employed Ratio (0.07) {0.11)
(xi) Retum on Igvestment ratio = (Renlised and Unrealised pain on t+Dividend + § )/ Average valne of Tnvestrue

‘Frade payables 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest Tnceme 143 12.00
Net Gain on Sale of Investment 2734 ~
Investnzent 1,698,98 400.00
Averape fovestment 1,049.49 400.00

Return on hivestimeny 0.04 003




GMR Hospitality Limited (CIN U$5101HR2022PLC105440)
Naotes to financial statements for the year ended Masrch 31, 2024
(Al aapmts are in Rs, Yakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

b) The Company has not boen declared as wiltul defiuiter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender,

c} The Company does oot having any charges or satisaction, which is yet 1 ba repistered with Registrar of Coimpanigs, beyond the statatory period prescribed under the Companies
Act 2013 and the riles made (hereunder.

d) The Company has not entered into any transaction which has not been recorded in books of account, thet has been surrender or disclosed a3 income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Tncome Thx Acy 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provision under the Intotns Tax Aet F951),

) The Conspany has not been traded ar invested in orypto currency or virtuat currency during the year.

f) The Company does not have any Berami property and futther, no procesdings has been itiated or are pending against the Company , i this rejard,

2) The Corepany has not entered into any transactions with struck off campanies, ag defined under the Companies Act 2613 and rules made thereunder.

) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any cther person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the under ding that the

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or estities identificd i any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
(i) provide any guaraniee, security or the Jike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iy The Company have net received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entities {Funding Parly) with the understanding (whether recordad in writing or
otherwise) that the

{i} directly or indizectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Funding Pary (Uliimate Beneficiaries) ar;
{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benaticiarics,

1) The Company has used borrowings from Banks and financial instilutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date,

35, Recent accounting pronowncements
The Ministty of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”} notifies new accounting standards or amendments to the existing accounting standards under the Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA lias not notifisd any new accounting standar-
-ds er amendments to the existing acconnting standards applicable to the Company.

As per our report of sven date

As per cur report of even date

For K5, Rao & Co. For and on benslf of the Board of Directops of
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GMR Hospitality Limited
{CIN U55101 HR2022PL:C105440)

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to Audited Financial Statements for
the period ended on 31" March 2024

1. Corporate information

GMR Hospitality Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India and was
incorporated on 25 July 2022 under the Companies Act, 2013. GMR Airports Limited (*GAL’) a
subsidiary of GMR Airport Infrastructure Limited (*GIL’), holds majority shareholding in the Company.
The company is primarily engaged in the business of managing and developing foods and beverage
outlets. The Company's registered office is at TEC Cybercity, Level 18, DLF Cybercity, Building No. 5,
Tower A, Phase-1I1, Gurugram-122002, Haryana., The audited Financial Statements have been approved
by the Board of Directors vide the Meeting dated May 17%, 2024,

2.a Basis of preparation and presentation

i.  The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended from time to time and presentation requirement of division II of Schedule IH to the
Companies Act, 2013 {Ind AS compliant Schedule IiI), as applicable to the financial statements.

ii.  The Audited Financial statements has been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
(as explained in accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

jii.  The functional and presentation currency of the company is Indian Rupees (“Rs.”) which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates, and all values are
rounded to nearest lakhs except otherwise indicated.

2.b Summary of Material accounting policies

i. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

a.Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
b.Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c.Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d.Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
fwelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as nen-current.

A liability is current when:

a. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
b.It is heid primarily for the purpose of trading,
¢. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d.There is no unconditional right or defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

o Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
e Advance tax paid is classified as non-current assets.




GMR Hospitality Limited
(CIN US5101HR2022PEC105440)

Summary of material accounting pelicies and other explanatory information to Audited Financial Statements for
the period ended on 31 March 2024

i.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for
estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government. Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Company’s activities as described below.

Sale of goods (Food, beverages, liquor, and others)

jii.

iv.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the customer, which coincides with the point of delivery of the goods to the customer
from restaurant delivery outlets, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

- The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods;

- The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and

~ The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

QOther income

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
agset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis and is included under the head "other income" in
the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currencies

Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the date of the transactions or at an average rate if the
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining vnsettled on reporting date are translated at the
rates of exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/(losses) arising on account of realisation/settlement of
foreign exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange gains / (losses) arising on translation of foreign currency monetary loans are presented in
the Staternent of Profit and L.oss on net basis.




GMR Hospitality Limited
(CIN U5S5101HR2022PLC105440)

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to Audited Financial Statements for
the period ended on 31 March 2024

v. Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds including interest expense calculated using the effective interest method. Borrowing costs attributable
to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

vi. Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits

Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected to be settled wholly
within twelve months after the end of the vear in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting year and are measured at an
undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the Habilities are settled.

ii) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) defined contribution plans such as provident fund; and
(b) defined benefit plans such as gratuity.

Defined contribution plan

The Company pays contribution provident fund to the regulatory authorities as per local regulations and the
Company has no further obligations once the payments have been made. The contributions are accounted
for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefits expense when
they are due. The Company’s contributions to the schemes are expensed in Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which they arises,

Defined benefit Plans
Defined benefit plans of the Company comprise gratuity.

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested emplovees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and
the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The gratuity plan of the
Company is unfunded. '

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting year. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated by actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting year on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation. This cost and other costs are included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. :




GMR Hospitality Limited
(CIN U55101HR2022P1.C105440)

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to Audited Financial Statements for
the period ended on 31* March 2024

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in "other equity" in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from settlement or curtailments are -
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.

vii. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any relating to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Defesred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent
that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the probability of deferred tax asset.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the repotting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which

the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liahilities and assets levied by the same tax authorities.

viii. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assess includes the cost of materials and direct services,




GMR Hospitality Limited
(CIN U55101HR2022PLC105440)

Summary of material accounting pelicies and other explanatory information to Audited Financial Statements for
the period ended on 31** March 2024

any other costs (net of Cenvat) directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for their
intended use.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of PPE are added to its carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriately only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation methods, estimated nseful lives and residual value

Leasehold improvements are being amortised over the period of 10 years or their useful life, whichever is
shorter.

Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, which is as follows:

Agset class Years
Equipment 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 8 years
Computers-Server & | 6 years
networks

Computers- End user Devices | 3/10years
Smallware 3 years
Vehicles 8 years

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting year.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.

The residual values and useful lives of PPE are reviewed by management at each reporting date and
adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Capital work-in-progress

Cost of PPE not ready for use as at the reporting date are presented as capital work-in-progress.

chartered Y
E‘x # J\cccuntan\s




GMR Hospitality Limited
(CIN US5101 HR2022PLC105440)

Summary of material accounting pelicies and other explanatory information to Audited Financial Statements for
the period ended on 31* March 2024

ix. Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of assets can be measured
reliably. The intangible assets are recorded at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to
acquisition and installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if’
any.

Gain or losses arising from de recognition of other intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the other intangible asset and are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset {s derecognised.

Subsequent costs is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure on other intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, as incurred.

Amortisation methods and estimated useful life

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 6
years (finite) for software’s and 5-10 years (finite) for Franchise rights fee using the straight-line method.
Amortisation is calculated on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased/ disposed during the year.

Amortisation method and estimated useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

x. Impairment ~ Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such indication of impairment exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash generating units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the catrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

xi. Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials and packing materials and stock-in-trade which comprises of groceries
and food and beverages which are of perishable and non-perishable in nature and are valued at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of first-in-first-out basis,
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
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Provision is made for items which are expired/not likely to be consumed and other anticipated losses
wherever considered necessary.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis at each reporting date.
xii. Provisions and contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects curreni market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility
of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liability and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet.
xiii. Earnings per share ('"EPS')
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potentiat equity shares.

xiv. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

xv. Financia! instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement
All financial assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
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Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial assets in following
categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following

conditions are met;

» The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are

met:

o The asset is held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on
the principal amount outstanding, :

A financial asset being equity instrument is measured at FVTPL,.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are

measured at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are recognised in
the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest income,
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain conirol of the financial asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through Profit or Loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are
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measured at lifetime ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL
model, are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial lLiabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial Habilities are initially measured at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through Profit or Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the liability.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Habilities other than classified as FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on modified terms
is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability

. extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of Profit

xvi.

and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received from sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell an asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/by the Company.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in Ind AS Financial Information are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+ Level 1— Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
+ Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observabie

« Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in these Ind AS Financial Information on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting vear.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or Hability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments in mutual funds, at fair value at each
reporting date. Also, fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost.

xvii. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is considered to be the Board of Directors
who makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments and which is reported in Reg 33.

xviit. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assets and the management conveys a right to use the
asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. A lease is classified at the
inception date as a finance lease or an operating iease.

(i) Where the Company is the lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease
term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-
of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable, Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
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lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses

incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company may adopt the

incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole. The lease payments shall include

fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option

where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability

is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to

reflect any reassessmert or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re- measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount of the
re-measurement in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has elected the practical expedient for short term leases, which permits an adopter to not
apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases with a remaining maturity of one year or less.

{ii) Where the Company is the Lessor,

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer
from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables
at the Company net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognized as income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in
which they are earned. '

xix. EBIDTA

The Company has presented profit/ (loss) before finance costs, taxes, depreciation, amortisation expense
and exceptional items as EBIDTA.




